Accredited Investor Services, LLC

Doing Business As

AIS Planning

622 Roosevelt Road Suite 160 St. Cloud, MN 56301

Phone: (320) 252-6552 Fax: (320) 252-6534 www.aisplanning.com

September 30, 2019

Form ADV Part 2A Brochure

Accredited Investor Services, LLC, doing business as AIS Planning ("AIS Planning") is an investment adviser registered with the Minnesota Department of Commerce and the Florida Office of Financial Regulation. An "investment adviser" means any person who, for compensation, engages in the business of advising others, either directly or through publications or writings, as to the value of securities or as to the advisability of investing in, purchasing, or selling securities, or who, for compensation and as part of a regular business, issues or promulgates analyses or reports concerning securities. Registration with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") or any state securities authority does not imply a certain level of skill or training.

This brochure provides information about the qualifications and business practices of AIS Planning. If you have any questions about the contents of this Disclosure Brochure, please contact us at (320) 252-6552. The information in this Disclosure Brochure has not been approved or verified by the SEC or by any state securities authority.

Additional information about AIS Planning is available on the SEC's website at <u>www.adviserinfo.sec.gov</u>.

Material Changes - Item 2

The purpose of this page is to inform you of any material changes since the previous version of this Disclosure Brochure.

On January 30, 2019 we submitted our annual updating amendment for fiscal year 2018 and have no material changes to report.

On September 30, 2019 our principal office location moved from 3701 12th Street North, Suite 103, St. Cloud, MN 56303 to 622 Roosevelt Road, Suite 160, St. Cloud, MN 56301.

We review and update our Disclosure Brochure at least annually to make sure that it remains current.

Table of Contents - Item 3

| Contents |
|---|
| Advisory Business - Item 4 |
| Fees and Compensation - Item 57 |
| Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side Management - Item 69 |
| Types of Clients - Item 79 |
| Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss - Item 8 |
| Disciplinary Information - Item 9 |
| Other Financial Industry Activities or Affiliations - Item 1011 |
| Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client Transactions and Personal Trading - Item 1112 |
| Brokerage Practices – Item 12 |
| Review of Accounts - Item 13 |
| Client Referrals and Other Compensation - Item 1414 |
| Custody - Item 1514 |
| Investment Discretion - Item 16 |
| Voting Client Securities - Item 1715 |
| Financial Information - Item 1815 |
| Requirements of State-Registered Advisers - Item 1915 |
| Miscellaneous |
| |

Advisory Business - Item 4

Accredited Investor Services, LLC doing business as AIS Planning is a registered investment adviser based in St. Cloud, Minnesota. We are a limited liability company formed under the laws of the State of Minnesota. We have been providing investment advisory services since 2008.

Cathy L. Juilfs and Jason C. Hallonquist are the Chief Managers and the owners of AIS Planning. Kristin Darnall is the Chief Compliance Officer of the firm.

Currently, we offer financial planning, investment monitoring, and qualified retirement plan consulting services personalized to each individual client. You may see the term "Associated Person" throughout this Disclosure Brochure. As used in this Disclosure Brochure, this term refers to anyone from our firm who is an officer, employee, and all individuals providing investment advice on behalf of our firm. Such persons are properly authorized and/or registered as investment adviser representatives ("IAR") in all required jurisdictions.

Financial Planning Advice

Our financial planning process is based on an effort to gain a deep understanding of client needs and objectives to provide personalized investment advice that is designed to help clients achieve their financial goals. We believe the time spent getting to know our clients and their finances in detail is an important investment towards the goal of obtaining/delivering quality advice. On average, we spend 15-20 hours during the first year of service and 8-12 hours in subsequent years, gathering information through meetings, phone conversations; exchanging emails; reviewing data; and working through our analytic tools and processes to understand, assess and advise on the various facets of the client's life and wealth, in light of who they are and what they most care about.

- Financial planning advice and services may include but are not limited to:
- Net worth and cash flow assessment and coaching
- Emergency account and cash flow planning
- Debt analysis and reduction strategy
- Behavioral risk analysis
- Retirement savings review
- Insurance review and assessment
- Education planning, funding and monitoring
- Retirement income planning and coordination
- Estate and beneficiary planning (in coordination with attorney)
- Tax planning (in coordination with tax accountant)
- Outside asset review, advice and monitoring
- Wealth transfer strategies

Ongoing Investment Monitoring - Assets Under Advisement (AUA)

With the client's best interest in mind, AIS Planning provides access to a broad spectrum of investment solutions. We focus on delivering a personalized approach to developing and maintaining a customized portfolio, utilizing academic-based disciplines for asset allocation, diversification and tax-awareness. Under such services, the firm provides non-discretionary investment monitoring and consulting services

on a non-continuous basis, where the investment advice provided is custom tailored to meet the needs and investment objectives of the client. Such services are provided by introducing clients to a network of unaffiliated third party investment advisers ("TPA") to manage their entire portfolio and monitoring the TPA(s) to ensure their performance and investment style remains aligned with the investment goals and objectives of the client.

Associated Persons of AIS Planning will periodically review reports provided to the client. An Associated Person will contact the client periodically, as agreed upon with each client, to review the client's financial situation and objectives, communicate information to TPAs as warranted, and to assist the client in understanding and evaluating the services provided by TPAs. AIS Planning will not manage or obtain investment discretion or trading authority over these client assets. However, AIS Planning will recommend reallocation of the client's assets to other TPAs, where such action is deemed to be in the best interest of the client. Clients will be expected to notify AIS Planning of any changes in their financial situation, investment objectives, or account restrictions. Clients should also directly contact their TPAs regarding such changes.

All TPAs that the firm recommends to its clients must either be exempt from registration or registered as investment advisers with the Securities and Exchange Commission or with the appropriate state authority(ies). AlS Planning will continuously monitor the performance of the TPA(s) to ensure their performance and investment style remains aligned with the investment goals and objectives of the client.

Project Specific Services

AIS Planning provides project specific services that focus on the specific needs and concerns of the client. Project specific services may include giving advice on investment and investment related matters. These services include the identification of financial goals and objectives, collection and assessment of all relevant data, identification of financial problems and formulation of solutions, and the preparation of a financial plan in the form of specific written recommendations. The services we provide will typically focus on the following areas:

- Financial Independence (Retirement Planning)
- Estate Planning
- Family Meetings
- Education Planning
- Insurance Reviews
- Tax Strategy Planning
- Executive Deferred Compensation Plans / Pension Payout Elections
- Social Security Planning
- Business Consulting
- Outside (Third-party) Investment and Asset Allocation Advice

Our advice is based on your financial situation and the financial information you provide to our firm. If your financial situation, goals, objectives, or needs change, you must notify us promptly.

You may choose to accept or reject our recommendations. If you decide to proceed with our recommendations, you may do so either through our firm or by using the advisory/brokerage firm of

your choice.

Qualified Retirement Plan Consulting Services

AIS Planning provides Consulting Services to qualified retirement, profit sharing, cash balance and 401(k) plans. AIS Planning will also offer these services, where appropriate, to individuals and trusts, estates and charitable organizations. Generally, these services are comprised of four distinct services. Clients may choose to use any or all of these services.

Investment Policy Statement Preparation

AIS Planning will meet with the client (in person or over the telephone) to determine the client's investment needs and goals. AIS Planning will then prepare a written Investment Policy Statement ("IPS") stating those needs and goals and creating a policy to help achieve these goals. The IPS will also list the criteria for selection of investment vehicles and the procedures and timing interval for monitoring of investment performance.

Selection of Investment Vehicles

AIS Planning will review various investments, consisting of one or all of the following: individual equities, bonds, other investment products and mutual funds (both index and managed) to determine which of these investments are appropriate to implement the client's IPS. The number of investments to be recommended will be determined by the client, based on the Investment Policy Statement.

Monitoring of Investment Performance

Client investments will be monitored continuously based on the procedures and timing intervals outlined in the Investment Policy Statement. Although AIS Planning will not be involved in any way in the purchase or sale of these investments, AIS Planning will supervise the client's portfolio and will make recommendations to the client as market factors and the client's needs dictate.

Employee Communications

For qualified retirement, profit sharing and 401(k) plans where the individual account participant exercises control over assets in his/her own account (hereinafter "self-directed plans"), AIS Planning also provides educational support and investment workshops designed for the Plan participants. The nature of the topics to be covered will be determined by AIS Planning and the client under the guidelines established in ERISA Section 404(c). The educational support and investment workshops will NOT provide Plan participants with individualized, tailored investment advice or individualized, tailored asset allocation recommendations.

Other qualified retirement plans consulting services are available on request. All of our qualified retirement plans consulting services, whether general or customized, will be outlined in an agreement that shows exactly which services will be provided and at what fee for those services.

Assets Under Management

We do not provide direct asset management services. As such, we have no reportable assets under management.

Fees and Compensation - Item 5

AIS Planning may charge, depending on your specific contract a set-up fee, annual planning fees, project specific fees, hourly fees, commissions, or fees based on assets under advisement and/or fees based on assets managed by TPAs for its advisory services.

Financial Planning Services Fees

Financial Planning Services are delivered on a subscription-based fee, determined by the level and complexity of service and advice requested/required. Asset Under Advisement Fees will off-set Standard and Advanced Financial Planning Advice and Service fees. Subscription-based fees are waived for clients utilizing our Investment Monitoring Services, with invested household assets exceeding \$750,000.

The Standard annual fee for financial planning advice is \$4500, although we will provide limited services for a minimum of \$1,800 and additional services for \$7500 per year. An additional fee is due at the start of any engagement, charged as an initial set-up fee. This fee covers the data gathering process and the client profile creation in our planning software. Services and related fees are described in detail in the Financial Services Agreement signed by the client and the firm. Clients can elect to have ongoing fees deducted monthly from a checking, savings or investment account or be invoiced in the first week, following the end of each quarter (January, April, July, October). Subscription Fees are pro-rated during the first quarter of an engagement.

Assets Under Advisement Fees

Assets Under Advisement fees adjust based on the total amount of household assets directly under the care of AIS Planning. Our Investment Monitoring fee schedule is provided below:

| Household Assets Under Advisement | Fee |
|-----------------------------------|-------|
| First \$750,000 | 1.00% |
| Next \$750,000 | 0.80% |
| Next \$1,500,000 | 0.60% |
| Next \$3,000,000 | 0.40% |
| Next \$4,000,000 | 0.20% |
| Thereafter | 0.10% |

For example, a client with an account worth \$3,000,000 will incur the following AUA fee: (\$750,000 x 1.0%: \$7,500) + (\$750,000 x 0.80%: \$6,000) + (\$1,500,000 x 0.60%: \$9,000) = Total fee: \$22,500. \$22,500/\$3,000,000 = .75% blended rate

Fees are charged quarterly in arrears, based on the account balance at the end of the quarter. For example, a client with an account worth 500,000 at the end of a quarter would be charged ($500,000 \times 1\%$)/4 = \$1,250.

Fees are only changed upon written notification to the client. Subscription Services are required for AIS Planning to accept and maintain Assets Under Advisement, unless negotiated otherwise.

Project Specific Services Fees

Project specific fees are quoted based on the time, scope and complexity of the project. Our minimum engagement fee is \$1,800 and is calculated based on the time needed to complete the project. Total fee is based on the estimated time required to provide the contracted services and billed incrementally based on agreed upon deliverables. AIS Planning is responsible to notify you in advance if/when estimated project fees are expected to be exceeded due to changes in time, scope and/or complexity of the project.

Commissions

AIS Planning maintains an independent insurance agency for the purpose of providing fixed annuity, term life or fixed insurance, disability and/or long-term care solutions to our clients. AIS Planning is only compensated by commissions through these offerings. Commissions are generally incorporated into the structure of the underlying product/solution and do not offset project based fees, annual planning fees or Asset Under Advisement fees.

Qualified Retirement Plan Services (includes profit sharing, cash balance and 401(k) plans)

For qualified retirement plan consulting services, AIS Planning charges an annual fee based upon a percentage of the market value of qualified retirement plan assets. On an annualized basis, fees will be subject to the following fee schedule:

| Total Plan Assets | Fees |
|-----------------------------|-------|
| \$0 to \$1,000,000 | 0.75% |
| \$1,000,000 to \$5,000,000 | 0.60% |
| \$5,000,000 to \$10,000,000 | 0.50% |
| \$10,000,000 and up | 0.40% |

AIS Planning charges an additional fee of 0.20% of total plan assets if the qualified retirement plan consulting service includes specific advice for plan participants.

Qualified Retirement Plan Consulting fees are negotiable and are payable monthly, in arrears, based on the total value of assets on the last day of the month. Generally, fees are directly deducted from the plan. In limited circumstances, we may invoice clients directly.

The client agreement may be terminated by any of the parties to the agreement by provision of written notice to the other parties. Upon termination, any unearned fees will be refunded to the client. Any fees accrued but not yet assessed to the account will be assessed prior to the termination of the agreement.

Additional Fees and Expenses

Fees are charged as described above and are not based on a share of capital gains in the account of an advisory client.

All fees paid to AIS Planning for portfolio management services are separate and distinct from the fees and expenses charged by mutual funds or exchange traded funds to their shareholders. These fees and expenses are described in each fund's prospectus. These fees generally include a management fee, other fund expenses, and a possible distribution fee. If the fund also imposes sales charges, a client may pay an initial or deferred sales charge. A client could invest in a mutual fund or security directly, without the services of AIS Planning. In that case, the client would not receive the services provided by AIS

Planning which are designed, among other things, to assist the client in determining which investments are most appropriate to each client's financial condition and objectives. Accordingly, the client should review both the fees charged by the funds and the fees charged by AIS Planning to fully understand the total amount of fees to be paid by the client and to thereby evaluate the management services provided.

Where AIS Planning does recommend a mutual fund to an advisory client, AIS Planning will recommend a no-load mutual fund. A no-load mutual fund is a mutual fund in which shares are sold without a commission or sales charge. The reason for this is that the shares are distributed directly by the investment company, instead of going through a secondary party. This is the opposite of a load fund, which charges a commission at the time of the fund's purchase, at the time of its sale, or for as long as the investor holds the fund.

Advisory recommendations are based on your financial information and situation disclosed to us at the time the services are provided. We may make certain assumptions with respect to interest and inflation rates and the use of past trends and performance of the market and economy. Past performance is in no way an indication of future performance. As your financial situation, goals, objectives, or needs change, you must notify us promptly.

Prior to engaging AIS Planning to provide planning and/or consulting services, the client will be required to enter into a written Agreement with our firm. The Agreement will set forth the terms and conditions of the engagement and describe the scope of the services to be provided and the portion of the fee that is due from the client.

Either party may terminate the Agreement by written notice to the other. In the event the client terminates AIS Planning's consulting services, the balance of AIS Planning's unearned fees (if any) shall be refunded to the client.

All conflicts of interest between you and our firm, and the Associated Persons of our firm, are outlined in this Disclosure Brochure. If additional conflicts arise in the future, we will notify you in writing or supply you with an updated Disclosure Brochure.

Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side Management - Item 6

Performance based fees are based on a share of capital gains on or capital appreciation of the client's assets. AIS Planning and its Associated Persons do not accept performance based fees.

Types of Clients - Item 7

We offer investment advisory services to individuals, qualified retirement and profit sharing plans, trusts, estates, charitable organizations, corporations, and other business entities.

Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss - Item 8

The following are different methods of analysis that we may use when providing you with investment advice:

- Fundamental Analysis attempts to determine a security's value by focusing on underlying factors that affect a company's actual business and its future prospects. The term refers to the analysis of the economic well-being of a financial entity as opposed to only its price movements.
- Technical Analysis relies on the assumption that current market data (such as charts of price, volume, and open interest) can help predict future market trends, at least in the short term. It assumes that market psychology influences trading and can predict when stocks will rise or fall.

We may refer clients to TPAs who provide advice to clients in accordance with investment programs developed by them. As disclosed above, AIS Planning will assist clients in selecting TPAs whose investment programs and strategies have been reviewed by AIS Planning and determined appropriate for AIS Planning's clients based on their individual circumstances and investment goals.

We, or the TPA managing your account, may use one or more of the following investment strategies when advising you on investments:

- Long Term Purchases securities held for over a year.
- Short Term Purchases securities held for less than a year.
- Trading securities sold within 30 days.
- Margin Transactions margin strategies allow an investor to purchase securities on credit and to borrow on securities already in their custodial account. Interest is charged on any borrowed funds for the period of time that the loan is outstanding.
- Short Sales short selling is the selling of a stock that the seller doesn't own. More specifically, a
 short sale is the sale of a security that isn't owned by the seller, but that is promised to be
 delivered.
- Covered Options covered option is a strategy in which an investor writes an option contract while at the same time owning an equivalent number of shares of the underlying stock.

Investing in securities involves risk of loss that you should be prepared to bear.

The financial planning service provided by AIS Planning will vary depending on each client's specific financial situation and goals. This brief statement does not disclose all of the risks and other significant aspects of investing in financial markets. In light of the risks, you should fully understand the nature of the contractual relationships into which you are entering and the extent of your exposure to risk. Certain investing strategies may not be suitable for many members of the public. You should carefully consider whether the strategies employed would be appropriate for you in light of your experience, objectives, financial resources and other relevant circumstances.

General Investment Risk: All investments come with the risk of losing money. Investing involves substantial risks, including complete possible loss of principal plus other losses and may not be suitable for many members of the public. Investments, unlike savings and checking accounts at a bank, are not insured by the government to protect against market losses. Different market instruments carry

different types and degrees of risk and you should familiarize yourself with the risks involved in the particular market instruments you intend to invest in.

Loss of Value: There can be no assurance that a specific investment will achieve its investment objectives and past performance should not be seen as a guide to future returns. The value of investments and the income derived may fall as well as rise and investors may not recoup the original amount invested. Investments may also be affected by any changes in exchange control regulation, tax laws, withholding taxes, international, political and economic developments, and government, economic or monetary policies.

Interest Rate Risk: Fixed income securities and funds that invest in bonds and other fixed income securities may fall in value if interest rates change. Generally, the prices of debt securities rise when interest rates fall, and their prices fall when interest rates rise. Longer-term debt securities are usually more sensitive to interest rate changes.

Credit Risk: Investments in bonds and other fixed income securities are subject to the risk that the issuer(s) may not make required interest payments. An issuer suffering an adverse change in its financial condition could lower the credit quality of a security, leading to greater price volatility of the security. A lowering of the credit rating of a security may also offset the security's liquidity, making it more difficult to sell. Funds investing in lower quality debt securities are more susceptible to these problems and their value may be more volatile.

Disciplinary Information - Item 9

Registered investment advisers are required to disclose all material facts regarding any legal or disciplinary events that would be material to your evaluation of us or the integrity of our management. There is no history of legal or disciplinary events by our firm, our management, or advisory representatives.

Other Financial Industry Activities or Affiliations - Item 10

AIS Planning is a licensed insurance agency that sells fixed insurance products. Certain Investment Advisory Representatives ("IARs") and Officers of the firm are licensed as insurance agents and can offer various insurance products from a variety of product sponsors and earn commissions for these activities. The firm expects that clients to whom it offers advisory services may also be insurance clients. Clients are instructed that the fees paid to the firm for advisory services are separate and distinct from the commissions earned by IARs and the firm for placing the client in insurance products. Clients to whom the firm offers advisory services are under no obligation to utilize the firm for insurance services.

Cathy L. Juilfs, Managing Director, Jason C Hallonquist, Managing Director, and other Associated Persons of AIS Planning, are also licensed as insurance agents and can effect transactions in various insurance products, including life, health, disability, long-term care, and annuities among others. These individuals

earn commissions for these activities. The firm expects that clients to whom it offers advisory services may also be clients for whom such individuals act as insurance agents. Clients are instructed that the fees paid to the firm for advisory services are separate and distinct from the commissions earned for placing the client in insurance products. Clients to whom the firm offers advisory services are informed that they are under no obligation to use the firm's Associated Persons for insurance services and may use the insurance brokerage firm and agent of their choice.

These arrangements represent a conflict of interest due to the receipt of both advisory and commission compensation. AIS Planning has policies and procedures in place to monitor all client transactions. Where AIS Planning finds an Associated Person has not acted in the best interest of the client, AIS Planning may cancel the transaction. Alternatively, AIS Planning may deduct the commission costs from the advisory fee paid by the client. In any event, all client transaction costs will be disclosed to the client. Ms. Juilfs & Mr. Hallonquist spend less than 5% of their time in their capacities as an insurance agent.

Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client Transactions and Personal Trading - Item 11

Description of Our Code of Ethics

AIS Planning has adopted a Code of Ethics (the "Code") to address investment advisory conduct. The Code focuses primarily on fiduciary duty, personal securities transactions, insider trading, gifts, and conflicts of interest. The Code includes AIS Planning's policies and procedures developed to protect client's interests in relation to the following topics:

- The duty at all times to place the interests of clients first;
- The requirement that all personal securities transactions be conducted in such a manner as to be consistent with the code of ethics.
- The responsibility to avoid any actual or potential conflict of interest or misuse of an employee's position of trust and responsibility;
- The fiduciary principle that information concerning the identity of security holdings and financial circumstances of clients is confidential; and
- The principle that independence in the investment decision-making process is paramount.

You can request a copy of our Code of Ethics by calling us at (320) 252-6552 or mailing us a request at our principal office address.

Personal Trading Practices

At times, AIS Planning and/or its IARs may take positions in the same securities as clients, which may pose a conflict of interest with clients. AIS Planning and its IARs will generally be "last in" and "last out" for the trading day when trading occurs in close proximity to client trades. We will not violate our fiduciary responsibilities to our clients. Front running (trading shortly ahead of clients) is prohibited. Should a conflict occur because of materiality (i.e. a thinly traded stock), disclosure will be made to the client(s) at the time of trading. Incidental trading not deemed to be a conflict (i.e. a purchase or sale which is minimal in relation to the total outstanding value, and as such would have negligible effect on the market price), would not be disclosed at the time of trading.

Brokerage Practices – Item 12

Suggestion of Broker

Clients invested in the Managed Accounts Program and the SEI Asset Allocation Program developed by SEI Investments Management Corporation ("SIMC"), are required to custody accounts with SEI Trust Company, ("SEI"), a wholly owned subsidiary of SEI Investments. SEI is a federally registered thrift institution. Trades executed through SEI for SEI funds are placed free of charge, as an accommodation to Clients. However, accounts may be subject to an annual custodial fee of up to \$1000. The exact fee will be listed in SEI's account opening document.

Research and Other Soft Dollar Benefits

Although not considered "soft dollar" compensation, AIS Planning may receive benefits from SEI and SIMC such as research services, reports, software, and institutional trading support.

AIS Planning understands its duty for best execution and considers all factors in making recommendations to its Clients. These research services may be useful in servicing all AIS Planning Clients, and may not be used in connection with any particular account that may have paid compensation to the firm in providing such services. While AIS Planning may not always obtain the lowest commission rate, AIS Planning believes the rate is reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and research services provided.

Brokerage for Client Referrals

We do not receive Client referrals from broker-dealers and custodians in which we have an institutional advisory arrangement. Also, we do not receive other benefits from a broker-dealer in exchange for Client referrals.

Directed Brokerage

The Client may direct brokerage to a specified broker-dealer other than the firm recommended by AIS Planning. It is up to the Client to negotiate the commission rate, as AIS Planning will not. The Client may not be able to negotiate the most competitive rate. As a result, the Client may pay more than the rate available through the custodian used by AIS Planning. In Client directed brokerage arrangements, the Client may not be able to participate in aggregated ("blocked") trades, which may help reduce the cost of execution. Where the Client does not otherwise designate a broker-dealer, AIS Planning recommends broker-dealers with competitive commission rates.

Review of Accounts - Item 13

We will monitor your portfolio's performance on a periodic basis. We will monitor the TPAs to ensure their performance and investment style remains aligned with your investment goals and objectives. Formal reviews are conducted by the Investment Adviser representative responsible for the client relationship on an annual basis.

The Associated Person assigned to each client portfolio will conduct account reviews. The Chief Compliance Officer will oversee the Associated Persons' monitoring of portfolios and financial plans for

investment objectives and other supervisory review.

A financial plan is a snapshot in time and no ongoing reviews are conducted. We recommend clients engage us on an annual basis to update the financial plan.

Clients will receive statements directly from their account custodian(s) on at least a quarterly basis. Additionally, the TPA managing the client's account may provide performance reports.

Client Referrals and Other Compensation - Item 14

We do not receive economic benefits from third parties in exchange for providing investment advice or other advisory services to our clients. However, as disclosed in the Research and Other Soft Dollar Benefits section above, we receive research and other benefits from SEI and SIMC. Additionally, various service providers may reimburse us for partial costs of client events, seminars, or due diligence expenses.

We may directly compensate non-employee (outside) consultants, individuals, and/or entities (Solicitors) for client referrals. In order to receive a cash referral fee from our firm, Solicitors must comply with the requirements of the jurisdictions in which they operate.

If you were referred to our firm by a Solicitor, you should have received a copy of this Disclosure Brochure along with the Solicitor's disclosure statement at the time of the referral. If you become a client, the Solicitor that referred you to our firm will receive a percentage of the advisory fee you pay our firm. You will not pay additional fees because of this referral arrangement.

Custody - Item 15

AIS Planning does not have custody of client funds. Clients will receive account statements at least quarterly from their qualified custodian. We urge our clients to review their account statements for accuracy. The custodial statement is the official record of your account for tax purposes.

Investment Discretion - Item 16

AIS Planning will not manage or obtain investment discretion or trading authority over client assets. We introduce clients to a network of unaffiliated TPAs to manage their entire portfolio.

Voting Client Securities - Item 17

Proxy Voting

AIS Planning will not vote proxies on behalf of client accounts. Although, at the client's request, AIS Planning may offer clients advice regarding corporate actions and the exercise of proxy voting rights and/or materials.

Questions about proxies may be made via the contact information on the cover page.

Financial Information - Item 18

We are required in this Item to provide you with certain financial information or disclosures about AIS Planning's financial condition. AIS Planning does not require the prepayment of over \$500, six or more months in advance. Additionally, AIS Planning has no financial commitment that impairs its ability to meet contractual and fiduciary commitments to clients, and has not been the subject of a bankruptcy proceeding.

Requirements of State-Registered Advisers - Item 19

Principal Executive Officers and Management Persons Cathy Lynne Juilfs, CFP[®], CEBS, AIFA[®]

Year of Birth: 1967

Formal Education After High School:

- California Community College, Palm Desert, CA, 1987, A.A., Accounting
- Colorado Technical University, 2010, Associates of Science in Business Administration
- Colorado Technical University, 2012, Bachelors of Science in Financial Planning Behavioral Finance
- Certified Financial Planner professional designation
- Certified Employee Benefits Specialist
- Accredited Investment Fiduciary Analyst

Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning, 11/2008 Present, St. Cloud, MN, Managing Director - Retirement Plan Services & Financial Planning / Investment Advisor Representative.
- Accredited Investor Services, Inc., 03/1999 12/2008, St. Cloud, MN, Vice President/Secretary 01/2003 – 12/2008, Owner/Chief Compliance Officer.
- Fintegra, LLC, St. Cloud, MN, 03/1999 11/2010, Registered Representative.

Jason Cameron Hallonquist

Year of Birth: 1969 Formal Education After High School:

- St. Cloud State University B.S., Finance and International Business 1992
- Certified Financial Planner professional designation

Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning 11/2008-Present, Managing Director Wealth Management & Financial Planning/Investment Advisor Representative.
- Accredited Investor Services, Inc., Owner/Vice President, 01/2003-12/2008.
- Fintegra, LLC. 06/2001 08/2015, Registered Representative.

Outside Business Activities

Please see Item 10 – Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations for further information.

Performance Based Fees

Performance based fees are based on a share of capital gains on or capital appreciation of the client's assets. AIS Planning and its Associated Persons do not accept performance based fees.

Disciplinary Information

Our firm and our management persons have not been involved in any reportable disciplinary events.

Other Relationships or Arrangements With Issuers of Securities

Our firm and our related persons do not have any relationships or arrangements with any issuer of securities.

Miscellaneous

Class Action Lawsuits

From time to time, securities held in the accounts of clients will be the subject of class action lawsuits. AIS Planning has no obligation to determine if securities held by the client are subject to a pending or resolved class action lawsuit. It also has no duty to evaluate a client's eligibility or to submit a claim to participate in the proceeds of a securities class action settlement or verdict. Furthermore, the firm has no obligation or responsibility to initiate litigation to recover damages on behalf of clients who may have been injured as a result of actions, misconduct, or negligence by corporate management of issuers whose securities are held by clients.

Where the firm receives written or electronic notice of a class action lawsuit, settlement, or verdict affecting securities owned by a client, it will forward all notices, proof of claim forms, and other materials, to the client. Electronic mail is acceptable where appropriate, and the client has authorized contact in this manner.

Privacy Policies

AIS Planning views protecting its clients' private information as a top priority and, pursuant to the requirements of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the firm has instituted policies and procedures to ensure that customer information is kept private and secure.

AIS Planning does not disclose any nonpublic personal information about its customers or former

customers to any nonaffiliated third parties, except as permitted by law. In the course of servicing a client account, AIS Planning may share some information with its service providers, such as transfer agents, custodians, broker-dealers, accountants, and lawyers.

AIS Planning restricts internal access to nonpublic personal information about its clients to those employees who need to know that information in order to provide products or services to the client. AIS Planning maintains physical and procedural safeguards that comply with state and federal standards to guard a client's nonpublic personal information and ensure its integrity and confidentiality. As emphasized above, it has always been and will always be the firm's policy never to sell information about current or former customers or their accounts to anyone. It is also the firm's policy not to share information unless required to process a transaction, at the request of the client, or as required by law.

A copy of the firm's privacy policy notice will be provided to each client prior to, or contemporaneously with, the execution of the advisory agreement. Thereafter, the firm will deliver a copy of the current privacy policy notice to its clients on an annual basis. If you have any questions on this policy, please contact Kristin Darnall, our Chief Compliance Officer, at (320) 252-6552.

Cathy Lynne Juilfs

Accredited Investor Services, LLC

Doing Business As

AIS Planning

622 Roosevelt Road Suite 160 St. Cloud, MN 56301

Phone: (320) 252-6552 Fax: (320) 252-6534 www.aisplanning.com

September 30, 2019

Form ADV Part 2B Brochure

This Brochure Supplement provides information about Cathy L. Juilfs that supplements AIS Planning ("AIS Planning") Brochure. You should have received a copy of that Brochure. Please contact us at (320) 252-6552 if you did not receive AIS Planning's Brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Additional information about Cathy L. Juilfs is available on the SEC's website at <u>www.adviserinfo.sec.gov</u>.

Educational Background and Business Experience - Item 2

Cathy Lynne Juilfs, CFP®, CEBS, AIFA®

Year of Birth: 1967

Formal Education After High School:

- California Community College, Palm Desert, CA, 1987, A.A., Accounting
- Colorado Technical University, 2010, Associates of Science in Business Administration
- Colorado Technical University, 2012, Bachelors of Science in Financial Planning Behavioral Finance
- Certified Financial Planner professional designation
- Certified Employee Benefits Specialist
- Accredited Investment Fiduciary Analyst

Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning, 11/2008 Present, St. Cloud, MN, Managing Director Retirement Plan Services and Financial Planning.
- Accredited Investor Services, Inc., 03/1999 12/2008, St. Cloud, MN, Vice President/Secretary 01/2003 – 12/2008, Owner/Chief Compliance Officer
- Fintegra, LLC, St. Cloud, MN, 03/1999 11/2010, Registered Representative

Certified Financial Planner (CFP®) The CFP® designation is conferred by the Certified Financial Planner Board of Standards, Inc. To earn the credential, each CFP® candidate must have a bachelor's degree (or higher) from an accredited college or university and three years of full-time personal financial planning experience. In addition, candidates must take the CFP® Certification examination and complete a CFP®-board registered program or hold an accepted designation, degree or license. Every two years, CFP® certificants must complete a minimum of 30 hours of continuing education. More information regarding the CFP® can be found at <u>http://www.cfp.net/default.asp</u>

Accredited Investment Fiduciary Analyst[™] (AIFA[®]) The AIFA designation certifies that the recipient has advanced knowledge of fiduciary standards of care, their application to the investment management process, and procedures for assessing conformance by third parties to fiduciary standards. To be eligible to receive the AIFA designation, individuals must have already completed the AIF training program and passed the AIF exam and meet a minimum prerequisite score based on the candidate's educational background and professional training and experience in investing, financial services and auditing. To receive the AIFA designation, individuals must complete a training program, successfully pass a comprehensive, closed-book final examination under the supervision of a proctor and agree to abide by the AIFA Code of Ethics. In order to maintain the AIFA designation, the individual must annually renew their affirmation of the AIFA Code of Ethics and complete ten hours of continuing education credits. The certification is administered by the Center for Fiduciary Studies, LLC (a Fiduciary360 (fi360) company).

Certified Employee Benefit Specialist (CEBS) The CEBS is the oldest professional designation in the employee benefits and compensation field. To earn the CEBS designation, one must complete an eight-course requirement (six required courses plus two electives) which include courses in health care benefits, administration of employee benefits, Welfare benefits, Defined Contribution Plans, and Human Resource and Compensation Management. In addition, the CEBS program accepts for exam credit, work

completed in a select number of other approved professional programs.

Disciplinary Information - Item 3

Cathy L. Juilfs, Managing Director, has no recent history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Other Business Activities - Item 4

Cathy L. Juilfs, Managing Director, is a licensed insurance agent and can effect transactions in insurance products for her clients and earn commissions for these activities. The firm's experience is that clients to whom it offers advisory services may also be clients for whom Ms. Juilfs acts as a licensed agent.

Fees paid to the firm for advisory services are separate and distinct from the commissions earned by Ms. Juilfs for placing the client in insurance products. Clients to whom the firm offers advisory services are informed that they are under no obligation to use Ms. Juilfs' services for insurance brokerage and may use the insurance brokerage firm and agent of their choice.

Additional Compensation – Item 5

Ms. Juilfs does not receive additional compensation or economic benefits from third party sources in connection to her advisory activities.

Supervision - Item 6

Cathy L. Juilfs is an Investment Adviser Representative of AIS Planning. In this role, Ms. Juilfs is responsible for conducting asset allocation reviews on a periodic basis.

Ms. Juilfs adheres herself to AIS Planning's code of ethics as mandated. Clients may contact Ms. Juilfs at (320) 252-6552 to obtain a copy of AIS Planning' code of ethics. Kristin Darnall, Chief Compliance Officer supervises Ms. Juilfs' advisory activities and personal securities transactions.

Requirements for State-Registered Advisers - Item 7

Disciplinary Information

Ms. Juilfs has no recent history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Bankruptcy Petition

Ms. Juilfs has not been subject to a bankruptcy petition.

Jason Cameron Hallonquist

Accredited Investor Services, LLC

Doing Business As

AIS Planning

622 Roosevelt Road Suite 160 St. Cloud, MN 56301

Phone: (320) 252-6552 Fax: (320) 252-6534 www.aisplanning.com

September 30, 2019

Form ADV Part 2B Brochure

This Brochure Supplement provides information about Jason C. Hallonquist that supplements AIS Planning ("AIS Planning") Brochure. You should have received a copy of that Brochure. Please contact us at (320) 252-6552 if you did not receive AIS Planning's Brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Additional information about Jason C. Hallonquist is available on the SEC's website at <u>www.adviserinfo.sec.gov</u>.

Educational Background and Business Experience - Item 2

Jason Cameron Hallonquist Year of Birth: 1969 Formal Education After High School:

- St. Cloud State University B.S., Finance and International Business 1992
- Certified Financial Planner professional designation

Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning 11/2008-Present, Managing Director Wealth Management/Financial Planning.
- Accredited Investor Services, Inc., Owner/Vice President, 01/2003-12/2008.
- Fintegra, LLC. 06/2001 08/2015, Registered Representative.

Disciplinary Information - Item 3

Mr. Hallonquist has no recent history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Other Business Activities - Item 4

Mr. Hallonquist is a licensed insurance agent and can effect transactions in insurance products for his clients and earn commissions for these activities. The firm's experience is that clients to whom it offers advisory services may also be clients for whom Mr. Hallonquist acts as a licensed agent.

Fees paid to the firm for advisory services are separate and distinct from the commissions earned by Mr. Hallonquist for placing the client in insurance products. Clients to whom the firm offers advisory services are informed that they are under no obligation to use Mr. Hallonquist's insurance brokerage services and may use the insurance brokerage firm and agent of their choice.

Additional Compensation – Item 5

Apart from the receipt of commissions for the sale of insurance products, Mr. Hallonquist does not receive additional compensation or economic benefits from third party sources in connection to his advisory activities.

Supervision - Item 6

Jason C. Hallonquist is an Investment Adviser Representative of AIS Planning. In this role, Mr. Hallonquist is responsible for conducting asset allocation reviews on a periodic basis.

Mr. Hallonquist adheres himself to AIS Planning's code of ethics as mandated. Clients may contact Mr. Hallonquist at (320) 252-6552 to obtain a copy of AIS Planning' code of ethics. Kristin Darnall, Chief Compliance Officer supervises Mr. Hallonquist's advisory activities and personal securities transactions.

Requirements for State-Registered Advisers - Item 7

Disciplinary Information

Mr. Hallonquist has no recent history of material legal or disciplinary events..

Bankruptcy Petition

Mr. Hallonquist has not been subject to a bankruptcy petition.

Daniel Thomas Gaughan

Investment Adviser Representative

Accredited Investor Services, LLC

Doing Business As

AIS Planning

622 Roosevelt Road Suite 160 St. Cloud, MN 56301

Phone: (320) 252-6552 Fax: (320) 252-6534 www.aisplanning.com

September 30, 2019

Form ADV Part 2B Brochure

This Brochure Supplement provides information about Daniel Thomas Gaughan that supplements AIS Planning ("AIS Planning") Brochure. You should have received a copy of that Brochure. Please contact us at (320) 252-6552 if you did not receive AIS Planning's Brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Additional information about Daniel Thomas Gaughan is available on the SEC's website at <u>www.adviserinfo.sec.gov</u>. Mr. Gaughan's CRD number is 5779033.

Educational Background and Business Experience - Item 2

Daniel Thomas Gaughan

Year of Birth: 1986

Formal Education After High School:

• Saint Cloud State University, 2010.

Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning, Investment Adviser Representative, 01/2015 to Present.
- Anderson Trucking, Regional Carrier Representative, 01/2012 to 01/2015.
- Northwestern Mutual Investment Services, Registered Representative, 04/2010 to 12/2011.
- Northwestern Mutual Life Insurance Company, Agent, 04/2010 to 12/2011.

Disciplinary Information - Item 3

Mr. Gaughan has no reportable history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Other Business Activities - Item 4

Mr. Gaughan is not engaged in any outside business activities.

Additional Compensation – Item 5

Mr. Gaughan does not receive additional compensation or economic benefits from third party sources in connection to his advisory activities at AIS Planning.

Supervision - Item 6

Mr. Gaughan is an Investment Adviser Representative of AIS Planning. In this role, Mr. Gaughan is responsible for conducting asset allocation reviews on a periodic basis.

Mr. Gaughan adheres himself to AIS Planning's code of ethics as mandated. Clients may contact Mr. Gaughan at (320) 252-6552 to obtain a copy of AIS Planning' code of ethics. Kristin Darnall, Chief Compliance Officer, supervises Mr. Gaughan's personal securities transactions.

Requirements for State-Registered Advisers - Item 7

Disciplinary Information

Mr. Gaughan has no history of reportable legal or disciplinary events.

Bankruptcy Petition

Mr. Gaughan has not been subject to a bankruptcy petition.

Jordan David Kretsch

Investment Adviser Representative

Accredited Investor Services, LLC

Doing Business As

AIS Planning

622 Roosevelt Road Suite 160 St. Cloud, MN 56301

Phone: (320) 252-6552 Fax: (320) 252-6534 www.aisplanning.com

September 30, 2019

Form ADV Part 2B Brochure

This Brochure Supplement provides information about Jordan David Kretsch that supplements AIS Planning ("AIS Planning") Brochure. You should have received a copy of that Brochure. Please contact us at (320) 252-6552 if you did not receive AIS Planning's Brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Additional information about Jordan David Kretsch is available on the SEC's website at <u>www.adviserinfo.sec.gov</u>. Mr. Kretsch's CRD number is 6865211.

Educational Background and Business Experience - Item 2

Jordan David Kretsch

Year of Birth: 1993

Formal Education After High School:

- St. Cloud State University, Bachelors, Finance, May 2015.
- Anoka Ramsey Community College, Attended 2011-2013.

Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning, Investment Adviser Representative, 11/2017 to Present.
- Financial Designs, Client Services, 04/2016 to 08/2016.
- St. Cloud State University, Student, 08/2013 to 05/2015.
- Richard C. Gage, Caretaker, 06/2015 to 01/2016.
- Anoka Ramsey College, Student, 08/2011 to 08/2013.

Disciplinary Information - Item 3

Mr. Kretsch has no reportable history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Other Business Activities - Item 4

Mr. Kretsch is not engaged in any outside business activities.

Additional Compensation – Item 5

Mr. Kretsch does not receive additional compensation or economic benefits from third party sources in connection to his advisory activities at AIS Planning.

Supervision - Item 6

Mr. Kretsch is an Investment Adviser Representative of AIS Planning. In this role, Mr. Kretsch is responsible for conducting asset allocation reviews on a periodic basis.

Mr. Kretsch adheres to AIS Planning's code of ethics as mandated. Kristin Darnall, Chief Compliance Officer, supervises Mr. Kretsch's personal securities transactions. Clients may contact Ms. Darnall at

(320) 252-6552 with any questions concerning Mr. Kretsch or to obtain a copy of AIS Planning's code of ethics.

Requirements for State-Registered Advisers - Item 7

Disciplinary Information

Mr. Kretsch has no history of reportable legal or disciplinary events.

Bankruptcy Petition

Mr. Kretsch has not been subject to a bankruptcy petition.

Sarah Ann Noble

Accredited Investor Services, LLC

Doing Business As

AIS Planning

3701 12th Street North, Suite 103 St. Cloud, MN 56303

> Phone: (320) 252-6552 Fax: (320) 252-6534 www.aisplanning.com

September 30, 2019

Form ADV Part 2B Brochure

This Brochure Supplement provides information about Sarah A. Noble that supplements AIS Planning ("AIS Planning") Brochure. You should have received a copy of that Brochure. Please contact us at (320) 252-6552 if you did not receive AIS Planning's Brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Additional information about Sarah A. Noble is available on the SEC's website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov.

Educational Background and Business Experience - Item 2

Sarah Ann Noble

Year of Birth: 1981

Formal Education After High School:

• Minnesota State University- Moorhead, 2004, Bachelor of Science in Business Administration Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning, 03/2019 Present, St. Cloud, MN, Associate Adviser
- Northwestern Mutual Wealth Management Company, 02/2019 02/2019, Milwaukee, WI, Representative
- Northwestern Mutual Insurance Company, 05/2018 02/2019, Milwaukee, WI, Associate Agent
- Northwestern Mutual Investment Services LLC, 04/2018 02/2019, Saint Cloud, MN, Associate Agent
- Joshua Longnecker, 12/2014 05/2018, Saint Cloud, MN, Director of Operations
- Joshua Longnecker, 07/2012 12/2014, Saint Cloud, MN, Recruiter

Disciplinary Information - Item 3

Sarah A. Noble has no recent history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Other Business Activities - Item 4

Sarah A. Noble is not involved in any other business activities.

Additional Compensation – Item 5

Sarah A. Noble does not receive additional compensation or economic benefits from third party sources in connection to her advisory activities.

Supervision - Item 6

Sarah A. Noble is an Associate Adviser of AIS Planning. In this role, Ms. Noble is responsible for conducting asset allocation reviews on a periodic basis.

Ms. Noble adheres herself to AIS Planning's code of ethics as mandated. Clients may contact Ms. Noble at (320) 252-6552 to obtain a copy of AIS Planning' code of ethics. Kristin Darnall, Chief Compliance Officer supervises Ms. Noble' advisory activities and personal securities transactions.

Requirements for State-Registered Advisers - Item 7

Disciplinary Information

Ms. Noble has no recent history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Bankruptcy Petition

Ms. Noble has not been subject to a bankruptcy petition.

Christopher P. Duke

Investment Adviser Representative

Accredited Investor Services, LLC

Doing Business As

AIS Planning

622 Roosevelt Road Suite 160 St. Cloud, MN 56301

Phone: (320) 252-6552 Fax: (320) 252-6534 www.aisplanning.com

December 6, 2019

Form ADV Part 2B Brochure

This Brochure Supplement provides information about Christopher P. Duke that supplements AIS Planning ("AIS Planning") Brochure. You should have received a copy of that Brochure. Please contact us at (320) 252-6552 if you did not receive AIS Planning's Brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this supplement.

Additional information about Christopher P. Duke is available on the SEC's website at <u>www.adviserinfo.sec.gov</u>. Mr. Duke's CRD number is 7207342.

Educational Background and Business Experience - Item 2

Christopher P. Duke

Year of Birth: 1994

Formal Education After High School:

• Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University, B.S., Applied Economic Management, 2017

Business Background Previous Five Years:

- Accredited Investor Services, LLC d.b.a. AIS Planning, Investment Adviser Representative, 12/2019 to Present.
- Fitzwilliams Financial, Intern, 12/20118 to 06/2019
- Uber, Driver, 06/2017 to 12/2018
- School, Full time Student, 12/2009 to 12/2017
- Signature Family Wealth, Intern, 06/2016 to 08/2016
- Cuisine & Co., Cook, 05/2014 to 12/2015

Disciplinary Information - Item 3

Mr. Duke has no reportable history of material legal or disciplinary events.

Other Business Activities - Item 4

Mr. Duke is not engaged in any outside business activities.

Additional Compensation – Item 5

Mr. Duke does not receive additional compensation or economic benefits from third party sources in connection to his advisory activities at AIS Planning.

Supervision - Item 6

Mr. Duke is an Investment Adviser Representative of AIS Planning. In this role, Mr. Duke is responsible for conducting asset allocation reviews on a periodic basis.

Mr. Duke adheres to AIS Planning's code of ethics as mandated. Kristin Darnall, Chief Compliance Officer, supervises Mr. Duke's personal securities transactions. Clients may contact Ms. Darnall at (320) 252-6552 with any questions concerning Mr. Duke or to obtain a copy of AIS Planning's code of ethics.

Requirements for State-Registered Advisers - Item 7

Disciplinary Information

Mr. Duke has no history of reportable legal or disciplinary events.

Bankruptcy Petition

Mr. Duke has not been subject to a bankruptcy petition.